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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To The Members of Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Narayana Hrudayalaya
Surgical Hospital Private Limited (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet
as at March 31,2020, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income), the Statement of Cash Flows and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information (herein after referred to as “the financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2013 ("the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity
with the Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended, (“Ind AS") and
other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the
Company as at March 31,2020, and its loss, total comprehensive loss, its cash flows and
the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on
Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act (SAs). Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the ICAI's Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained
by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the financial
statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Directors’ report but does not
include financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the

other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially

inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the course of
R/our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.
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If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Management’'s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and
fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
income, cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order to

design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section

143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the
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Company has adequate internal financial controls system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the management

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the financial statements that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be influenced. We consider
quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Cash Flows and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.
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d) Inouropinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act.

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the
Company as on March 31, 2020 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of
the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being appointed as a director
in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate Report in "Annexure A”. Our report expresses an unmodified opinion
on the adequacy and operating effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial
controls over financial reporting.

g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended, in
our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations
given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company to its directors during the year
is in accordance with the provisions of section 197 of the Act.

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its
financial position;

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iil. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

2. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure
B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

TN o

Monisha Parikh
Partner
(Membership N0.47840)
UDIN : 20047840AAAABR8249
Place : Bengaluru
Date : June 15, 2020
MP/EKP/2020
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ANNEXURE “"A"” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 1 (f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Narayana
Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited ("the Company”) as of March 31, 2020
in conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the
Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’'s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and the
Standards on Auditing prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to
the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system
over financial reporting.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance
with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal financial control
over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
India.

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

T v W

Monisha Parikh

Partner

(Membership N0.47840)

UDIN : 20047840AAAABR8249

Place : Bengaluru
Date : June 15, 2020
MP/EKP/2020
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ANNEXURE “"B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars,
including quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The Company has a program of verification of fixed assets to cover all the
items in a phased manner over a period of three years which, in our opinion,
is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its
assets. Pursuant to the program, certain fixed assets were physically verified
by the Management during the year. According to the information and
explanations given to us, no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records
examined by us and based on the examination of the possession certificate
provided to us, we report that, the title deed, comprising the immovable
property of building, is held in the name of the Company as at the balance
sheet date.

(i) As explained to us, the inventories were physically verified during the year by the
Management at reasonable intervals and no material discrepancies were noticed on
physical verification.

(iii)  The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured to companies,
firms, limited liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register
maintained under section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(iv) The Company not granted any loans, made investments or provided guarantees
and hence reporting under clause (iv) of the Order is not applicable.

(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits during the year and did not have any unclaimed deposits.

(vi)  The maintenance of cost records has been specified by the Central Government
under section 148(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of services rendered.
We have broadly reviewed the cost records maintained by the Company pursuant
to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, as amended prescribed
by the Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Companies
Act 2013, and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed cost records have
been made and maintained. We have, however, not made a detailed examination
of the cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, in respect of statutory
dues:

(a) The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory
dues, including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax,
Customs Duty, Goods & Service Tax, cess and other material statutory dues
applicable to it to the appropriate authorities.
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(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(b) There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund,
Employees’ State Insurance, Income-tax, Customs Duty, Goods & Service
Tax, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2020
for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

(c)  There are no unpaid dues of Income-tax, Goods & Service Tax Customs Duty,
as on March 31, 2020 on account of any disputes.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans to banks. The Company has not
taken any loans or borrowings from financial institutions and government and has
not issued any debentures.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
money raised by way of term loans have been applied by the Company during the
year for the purposes for which they were raised. The Company has not raised
moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt
instruments).

To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations
given to us, no fraud by the Company and no material fraud on the Company by
its officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has paid managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the
Companies Act, 2013.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting under clause (xii) of the
Order is not applicable.

The Company is a private company and hence the provisions of section 177 is not
applicable to the Company. In our opinion and according to the information and
explanations given to us the Company is in compliance with Section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013, for all transactions with the related parties and the details
of related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements etc.
as required by the applicable accounting standards.

During the year the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures and hence reporting
under clause (xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us,
during the year the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with
its directors or persons connected with him and hence provisions of section 192 of
the Companies Act, 2013 are not applicable.
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(xvi) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934,

For DELOITTE HASKINS & SELLS LLP
Chartered Accountants
(Firm’s Registration No.117366W/W-100018)

Monisha Parikh
Partner
(Membership N0.47840)
UDIN : 20047840AAAABR8249
Place : Bengaluru
Date : June 15, 2020
MP/EKP/2020
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Naraynna Hrudayalnya Surgical Hospi(al Private Limited
Balance sheet

(T in lakhs)

Particulars Note No. Asat (DD
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
ASSETS
Non-current nssets
Property, plant and equipment 4 8.043 11 8.712 22
Right of use assets 5 61249 -
Capital work-in-progress 4 793 42 2060
Goodwill 4 . 790 00
Intangible assets 4 307710 371209
Financial assels
Loans 6 (1) 659 23 61099
Other financial assels 7 (n) 4170 1052
Income tax asscls (net} 8 148 85 42737
QOther non-current assets 9 (a) 1,354.69 1,660 30
Tolal non-curreni assets 14,930.80 15,944.09
Current Assets
Inventories 10 512 60 491 78
Financial asscts
I'rade reccivables 11 3,037 68 2948 83
Cash and cash equivalents 12 (a) 699 68 30395
Bank balances other than above 12 (b) 1 00 [l
L.oans 6 (b) 1047 747
Olher financial asscts 7(b) 936 94 432 0l
Other current assets 9 (b) 15515 28135
Total current assets 5,553.52 4,466,9%9
TOTAL ASSETS 20,484,312 20,411.08
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Lquity share capital 13 () 2,274 88 2,146 54
Other equity 13 (b) (2.820.23) (908 72)
Total equity T (545.35) 1,237.82
Liabilities
Nou-current linbilities
Financial habilities
Borrowings 14 (a) 2.561 55 3.078 68
L.case liabihties 15 (a) 643 88 -
Other linancial liabilitics 16 (a) 9,364 17 9,802 03
Provisions 17 {n) 107 27 6126
Total non-current liabilities 12,676.87 12,941.97
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 14 (b) 1,809 66 809 49
l.case liabilitics 15 (b) 12363
I'rade payables 18
‘l'olal outstanding dues ol micro enterprises and small enteiprises 124 80 11993
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enlerprises and small enterprises 3,934 15 3401 51
Other lnancial liabilities 16 (b) 1,904 83 1,531 63
Other current liabilities 19 294 85 23324
Provisions 17 (b) 160 88 135 49
Total curren liabilities 8,352.80 6.231.29
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 20,484.32 20,411.08
Significant accounting policies 3

‘The accompanying noles are an integral part of these [inancial statements
As per our report of even dale altached

For Deloitte ITaskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

T v b

Mounisha Parikh
Pariner

Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 15, 2020

Ravindra KS’
Chiefl Financial Officer

Place Bengaluru
Date: June 15, 2020

i

a/\f_})'

Dr. Enunanuel Rupert
Director
DIN 07010883

Place Bengaluru
Pate June 15, 2020

W} .
£
,
-
HemishtPurusholtam

Company Sceretury

Place Bengaluiu
Date June 15,2020



Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Statement of profit and loss

(¥ in lakhs)

i . , For the year ended For the year ended
Particulgss SRS March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
INCOME )

Revenue from Operations 20 20.106.69 17,982 32
Other income 21 101.35 94 04
Total income (A) 2(0,208.04 18,076.36
EXPENSES
Purchase of medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments 5576 75 5.144 68
Changes in inventories of medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments - (Increase)/Decreasc 22 (20 83) (93 00)
[:mployce benelil expenses 23 3,703 73 3.428.11
Professional fees to doctors 5,031.53 4.961 04
Other expenses 24 5,062 14 4,716 20
Expenses before finance costs, depreciation and amortisation and exceptional items (B) 19,353.32 18,157.03
Earnings/(Loss) before finance costs, depreciation and amortisation, exceptional items and tax (A-B) 854,72 (80.67)
FFinance costs (C) 25 2,063.64 2.050 62
Depreciation and amortisation expense (D) 26 1,483.89 1.329 07
Total expenses (E) = (B+C+D) 22,900.85 21,536.72
Profit/(loss) before exceptional items and tax (F) = (A-E) (2,692.81) (3,460.36)
Exceptional items (G) 38 1,086,99 .
Profit/(loss) before tax (H) = (F-G) (3,779.80) (3,460.36)
Tax expenses:

Current ‘Tax - -

Delerred tax (credit)/ charge . -
Total tax expenses (I) - -
Profit/(loss) for the year (J) = (H-I) (3,779.80) (3,460.36)
Other Comprehensive Income (OCl)
Items that will not be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss

Re-measurement of defined benefil plans 27.86 0.74
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of income tax (K) 27.86 0.74
Total comprehensive (loss)/ income for the year (J-K) (3,807.66) (3,461.10)
Earning/(L.oss) per share 34 (17.30) (17.40)
Basic and diluted (%)
Signilicant accounting policies 3
The accompanying noles are an integral part of these financial statements
As per our report of even dale attached
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells LLP IFor and on behall of the Board ol Directors of

i Hrpdayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited

S - \\/ijf/

Dr. Emmanuel Rupert
Director
DIN: 07010883

Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 15, 2020

Chartered Accountants

T ot - Lk

Monisha Parikh
Partner

Place: Bengaluru

Date: June 15,2020 DA June 15,2020
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Narayana [rudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Statement of changes in equity for the year ended March 31, 2020

(#) Equity share capital

(% in lakhs except no of shares)

Particulars No. of Shares Amount
E:quity shares of T 10 cach issued, subscribed and fully paid up

Balance as at March 31, 2018 ' 1,91,34,500 1,913 .45
Changes in equity share capital during 2018-19 [refer note 12(a)] 23,30,900 233.09
Balance as at March 31, 2019 ) 2,1«1,65'.4{]'0 2,146.54
Changes in equity share capital during 2019-20 [refer note 12(a)] 12,83.400 128.34
Balance as at March 31, 2020 2,27,48,800 2,274.88

(b) Other Equity

(X in lakhs)

Particulars

Reserves &

Surplus

Ttems of OCT

Securities premium

Retained earnings

Remeasurements of the net

Total other equity

reserve defined benefit plans

Balance as at March 31, 2018 © 4,268.81 (4,470.85) (10.89) (212.93)
Seeurities Premium on issue ol shares 2.765.31 - - 2.765 31

Prolit/(Loss) for the ycar (3.460 36) . (3.460 36)
Other comprehensive income (OCIH) - - (0 74) (01.74)
Balance as at 31 March 2019 7,034,12 (7,931.21) (11.63) (908.72)
Seeurities Premium on issue ol shares 1,999 48 . . 1.999 48

Impact on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 (net of tax) (103.33) (103.33)
Profit/(Loss) for the year - (3,779.80) - (3,779.80)
(ther comprehensive income - - (27.86) (27.86)
Balance as at 31 March 2020 9,033.60 (11,814.34) (39.49) (2,820.23)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements

As per our report of even date atlached

['or Deloitte Tlaskins & Sells LLP
Chartered Accountants

Tood b b

Monisha Parikh
Partner

Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 15, 2020
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of’

Narayana Hr

MA L

Ravindra KS '
Chief Financial Olficer
Place: Bengaluru

Dale: June 15, 2020

ya Surgical Ilospital Private Limited

Dr. Emmanuel Rupert
Direclor
DIN: 07010883

Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 15,2020

k—/

D

Hemish Purnshottam
Company Sccretary

Place: Bengaluru
Date: June 15, 2020




Narayana llrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Statement of Cash flows

(X in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Cash flow from operating activitics
Profit/(loss) alter tax (3,779.80) (3,460.36)
Adjustments :
Depreciation and amortisation 1,483.89 1,329.07
Interest income (1.25) (2.29)
Interest income from financial assel at amortised cosl (46.42) (42.19)
Right to use building 164.10 164.10
Provision for loss allowance 27790 190 62
Provision of inventories for write-down 1o net realisable value 1711 709
Finance cosls 2,063 .64 2,050 62
[xceptional items (refer note 38) 1.086 99 z
Prolit on salc of Property, plant and equipment - (0.18)
Operating cash flow before working capital changes 1,266.16 236.48
Changes in trade receivables (366.75) (414.03)
Changes in invenlories (37.93) (100.09)
Changes in loans, other financial assets and other assets (525.33) (327.76)
Changes in trade payables and other financials liabilities 598.62 1,152.74
Changes in provision 43.54 35.80
Cash generated from operations 978.31 583.14
Income taxes paid (net of refund) 78.52 (110.12)
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 1,056.83 473.02
Cash Now from investing activities
Acquisition ol properly, plant and equipment (536.20) (1,108.77)
Acquisition of unit (1,984.49) (1,890.00)
Investment in bank deposit (30.00) (1.00)
Proceeds received [rom bank deposit - 40.20
Proceeds [rom sale of assels . 34.83
Interest received 015 216
Net cash used in from investing activities (B) (2,550.54) (2,922.58)
Cash flow from financing activities
Proceeds from long-terim borrowings . 48,075.15
Repayment ol tong-term borrowings (687.13) (48,151 64)
Proceeds from loan by a related party (refer note 33 b) 3,650.00 2,335 00
Repayment of loan by a related party (refer note 33 b) (2,925.00) (2,335.00)
Proceeds from issue ol equily shares 2,127.82 2.998 40
Interest and other borrowing costs (449.56) (457.14)
Payment of lease liabilitics {101.86) -
Net cash generated from financing activities (C) 1,614.27 2,464.77
Net increase in cash and cash cquivalents (A+B+C) 120.56 15,21
Cash and cash cquivalents al the beginning ol the year (refer note 11)* (505.54) (52075)
Cash and cash cquivalents at the end of the year (refer note 11) (384.98) (505.54)

* Cash and cash equivalents includes bank overdrafls that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Company's cash management.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

1. Company overview

Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited (‘the Company’) was incorporated on October 11,
2010 under the Companies Act, 1956. The Company is engaged in establishing, promoting, owning, letting,
managing and maintaining hospitals, clinics, health centers, nursing home in all discipline of medicine and
without limitation to run and administer healthcare schemes.

2. Basis of preparation of the financial statements
2.1. Statement of compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance of Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) as per
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 notified under Section 133 of Companies Act
2013 (the “Act’) and other relevant provisions and amendment rules issued thereafter.

The financial statements were authorized for issue by the Company’s Board of Directors on
June 15, 2020.

Details of the Company’s accounting policies are included in Note 3.

Except for the changes below, the Company has consistently applied accounting policies to all periods.

i) The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 'Leases' with the date of initial application being April I, 2019, Ind
AS 116 replaces Ind AS 17 — Leases and related interpretation and guidance. The standard sets out
principles for recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases for both parties to a
contract i.e., the lessee and the lessor. Ind AS 116 introduces a single lessee accounting model and
requires a lessee to recognise assets and liabilities for all leases with a term of more than 12 months,
unless the underlying asset is of low value. The Company has applied Ind AS 116 using the modified
retrospective approach, under which the cumulative effect of initial application is recognised in retained
earnings at April 1, 2019. As a result, the comparative information has not been restated. Refer Note 37
for further details.

i1) Appendix C to Ind AS 12, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments: On March 30, 2019, Ministry of
Corporate Affairs ("MCA") has notified the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment
Rules, 2019 containing Appendix C to Ind AS 12, Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments which
clarifies the application and measurement requitements in Ind AS 12 when there is uncertainty over
income tax treatments, The current and deferred tax asset or liability shall be recognized and measured by
applying the requirements in Ind AS 12 based on the taxable profit (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses,
unused tax credits and tax rates determined by applying this appendix. The amendment is effective from
April 1, 2019. The Company has evaluated the effect of this amendment on the financial statements and
concluded there is no significant impact.

iii) Amendment to Ind AS 19 'Employee Benefits": On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs
has notified limited amendments to Ind AS 19 'Employee Benefits' in connection with accounting for plan
amendments, curtailments and settlements. The amendments require an entity to use updated assumptions
to determine current service cost and net interest for the remainder of the period after a plan amendment,
curtailment or seftlement and to recognise in profit or loss as part of past service cost, or a gain or loss on
settlement, any reduction in a surplus, even if that surplus was not previously recognised because of the
impact of the asset ceiling. The amendment is effective from April 1, 2019. The Company hasew
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Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (continued)

the effect of this amendment on the financial statements and concluded that this amendment is currently
not applicable.

iv) Amendment to Ind AS 12 'Income Taxes": On March 30, 2019, the Ministry of Corporate Aftairs has
notified limited amendments to Ind AS 12 'Income Taxes'. The amendments require an entity to recognise
the income tax consequences of dividends as defined in Ind AS 109 when it recognises a liability to pay a
dividend. The income tax consequences of dividends are linked more directly to past transactions or
events that generated distributable profits than to distributions to owners. Therefore, an entity shall
recognize the income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other comprehensive income or
equity according to where the entity originally recognised those past transactions or events. The
amendment is effective from April 1, 2019. The Company has evaluated the effect of this amendment on
the financial statements and concluded that there is no significant impact.

2.2 Going concern
The Financial statements have been drawn up on a going concern basis in view of the support letter
received from Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited, the Holding Company confirming their continued financial

support to the Company to enable it to continue its operations and settle its obligations as and when they
become due over the next twelve month period.

2.3. Functional and presentation currency
These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (%), which is also the Company’s functional
currency. All amounts are presented in ¥ in lakhs, except share data and per share data, unless otherwise
stated.

2.4, Basis of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for the following items:

Items Measurement basis S
Certain financial assets and liabilities Fair value
Net defined benefit (asset)/ liability Fair value of plan assets less present value

of defined benefit obligations

2.5, Use of estimates and judgments

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and
expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognised prospectively.
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Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (continued)

Judgments

Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects on
the amounts recognised in the financial statements is included in the following notes:

Note 27 - Assessment of contingent liabilities and commitments

Note 29 - Leases

Note 37 - Financial instruments

Assumptions and estimation uncertainties
Information about assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have significant risk of resulting in a
material adjustment in the year ending March 31, 2020 is included in the following notes:

Note 30- recognition of deferred tax assets

Note 31 - measurement of defined benefit obligation; key actuarial assumptions
Note 4 - useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets

Note 6, 7, 11 and 37 - recognition of impairment of financial assets

2.6. Measurement of fair values

3.

A number of the Company’s accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for
both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs used in the
valuation techniques as follows:
— Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
— Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).
— Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market data as far as
possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the
fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the
fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred. Further information about the assumptions made in
measuring fair values is included in the following notes:

Note 37 — financial instruments

Significant accounting polices

3.1. Financial instruments

a. Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial
liabilities are initially recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value
through profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.




Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (continued)
b. Classification and subsequent measurement
Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at
- amortised cost
- FVTPL

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition, except if and in the period the
Company changes its business model for managing financial assets.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:
— the asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual
cash flows; and
— the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at
FVTPL. On initial recognition, the Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise
meets the requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair
value basis are measured at FVTPL,

Financial assets: Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition, ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial
asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such
that it would not meet this condition. In making this assessment, the Company considers:

— contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

— terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable interest rate features;

— prepayment and extension features; and

— terms that limit the Company’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse

features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the
prepayment amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, which may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the
contract. Additionally, for a financial asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its contractual
par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the
contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest (which may also include reasonable
additional compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this criterion if the fair value
of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.
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Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (continued)

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at | These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
FVTPL including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at | These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
amortised cost interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit
or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using effective interest method. For trade and other
payable maturing within one year from the balance sheet date, the carrying value approximates fair value
due to short maturity.

¢. Derecognition
Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in
which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in
which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
and does not retain control of the financial asset.

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised on its balance sheet, but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets, the transferred assets
are not derecognised.

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled or expire.

The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows under
the modified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability
extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms is recognised in profit or loss.

d. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet when,
and only when, the Company has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to
settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

3.2. Inventories

The inventories of medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments are valued at lower of cost or net
realizable value. In the absence of any further estimated costs of completion and estimated costs
necessary to make the sale, the net realizable value is the selling price. The comparison of cost and net
realizable is made on an item by item basis. Cost of these inventories comprises of all costs of purchase

added tax wherever applicable, applying the first in first out method.
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Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (continued)

3.3. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value.

3.4. Cash flow statement

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit/(loss) before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts or
payments. The cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities of the Company are
segregated. Bank overdrafts are classified as part of cash and cash equivalents as they form an integral
part of an entity’s cash management.

3.5. Revenue recognition
Revenue from operations

Revenue from medical and healthcare services to patients is recognised as revenue when the related
services are rendered unless significant future uncertainties exist. Revenue is also recognised in relation to
the services rendered to the patients who are undergoing treatment/ observation on the balance sheet date
to the extent of services rendered.

Revenue is recognised net of discounts given to the patients.

Revenue from sale of medical consumables and drugs within the hospital premises is recognised when
property in the goods or all significant risks and rewards of their ownership are transferred to the
customer and no significant uncertainty exists regarding the amount of the consideration that will be
derived from the sale of the goods and regarding its collection.

‘Unbilled revenue’ represents value to the extent of medical and healthcare services rendered to the
patients who are undergoing treatment/ observation on the balance sheet date and is not billed as at the
balance sheet date.

Interest

For all debt instruments measured either at amortized cost, interest income is recorded using the effective
interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset or to the amortized cost of a financial liability. When calculating
the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by considering all the
contractual terms of the financial instrument (for example, prepayment, extension, call and similar
options) but does not consider the expected credit losses. Interest income is included in other income in
the statement of profit and loss.

3.6. Property, Plant and Equipment
Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost which includes capitalized borrowing costs, less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. The cost of an item of Property, Plant and
Equipment comprises its purchase price, including import duties and other non-refundable taxes or levies,
freight, any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use and
estimated cost of dismantling and restoring onsite: any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in
arriving at the purchase price. Subsequent expenditures related to an item of tangible fixed asset are added
to its book value only if they increase the future benefits from the existing asset beyond its previously




Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited

Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (continued)
assessed standard of performance. Cost includes expenditures directly attributable to the acquisition of the
asset.

Depreciation and amortization

The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment over the estimated useful life on a straight-line
basis from the date the assets are ready for intended use. Assets acquired under business combination are
amortized over the lower of estimated useful life and term of agreement. The estimated useful lives of
assets for the current and comparative period of significant items of property, plant and equipment are as

follows:

Block of assets Useful life
Building 60 years
Electrical installation 10 years
Medical equipment 13 years
Office equipment 5 years
Other equipment including air conditioners 15 years
Furniture and fixtures 10 years
Vehicles 5 years
Computers 3 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at each financial year-end and
adjusted appropriately.

The Company believes that the useful life as given above best represent the useful life of the assets based
on the internal technical assessment and these useful lives are as prescribed under Part C of Schedule I of
the Companies Act, 2013 except vehicles where useful life considered by management is lower.

The cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the financial statements upon sale or
disposition of the asset and the resultant gains or osses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss.
Amounts paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding as of each reporting
date are recognized as capital advance and the cost of property, plant and equipment not ready for
intended use before such date are disclosed under capital work- in-progress.

3.7. Business combination, goodwill and other intangible assets
(a) Business combination
Business combinations are accounted for using the purchase (acquisition) method. The cost of an
acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments issued and liabilities
incurred or assumed at the date of exchange. The cost of acquisition also includes the fair value of any
contingent consideration. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a
business combination are measured initially at their fair value on the date of acquisition.
Transaction costs incurred in connection with a business combination are expensed as incurred.

(b) Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the consideration transferred, over the net of the
acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed.

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried at cost as established at the date of acquisition
of the business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.




Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (continued)

(c) Intangible assets

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment. Intangible assets are
amortized over their respective estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, from the date that they are
available for use.

Amortisation method
The estimated useful life of an identifiable intangible asset is based on a number of factors including the
effects of obsolescence, demand, competition and other economic factors (such as the stability of the

industry and known technological advances) and the level of maintenance expenditures required to obtain
the expected future cash flows from the asset.

The estimated useful lives of intangibles are as follows;

Block of assets Useful life
Computer software 3 years
Customer Relationship 10 years

Amortisation method
Useful life and residual values are reviewed at the end of each financial year.

3.8. Employee benefits
Short term employec benefits

Employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months of receiving services are classified as short-term
employee benefits. These benefits include salary and wages, bonus and ex-gratia. The undiscounted
amount of short-term employee benefits to be paid in exchange for employee services is recognized as an
expense as the related service is rendered by the employees.

Post-employment benefits
Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays specified
contributions to separate entity and has no obligation to pay any further amounts. 'The Company makes
specified obligations towards employee provident fund and employee state insurance to Government
administered provident fund scheme and ESI scheme which is a defined contribution plan. The
Company’s contributions are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit and loss during the
period in which the employee renders the related service.

Defined benefit plans

The Company’s gratuity benefit scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in
respect of a defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees
have earned and returned for services in the current and prior periods; that benefit is discounted to
determine its present value. The calculation of Company’s obligation under the plan is performed
periodically by an independent qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.

The gratuity scheme is administered by third party. Re-measurements of the net defined benefit liability,
which comprise actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of
the asset ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income
(OCI). The Company determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined liability (assets) for
the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the net defined obligation at the beginning of the
annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into account any changes as a result
of contribution and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to define




Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (continued)

plans are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. The Company recognizes gains and losses in the
curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan when the curtailment or settlement occurs

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in benefit that
relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognised immediately in the statement of
profit and loss.

Compensated absences

The employees can carry-forward a portion of the unutilized accrued compensated absences and utilize it
in future service periods or receive cash compensation on any leave accumulated in excess of sixty days
or on termination of employment. Since the employee has unconditional right to avail the leave, the
benefit is classified as a short-term employee benefit. The Company records an obligation for such
compensated absences in the period in which the employee renders the services that increase this
entitlement. The obligation is measured on the basis of independent actuarial valuation using the
projected unit credit method.

3.9. Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are interest and other costs incurred in connection with the borrowing of funds.
Borrowing costs directly attributable to acquisition or construction of an asset which necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.
Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

3.10. Leases

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land & buildings and equipment. The
Company, at the inception of a contract, assesses whether the contract is a lease or not lease. A contract
is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a time
in exchange for a consideration. This policy has been applied to contracts existing and entered into on or
after April 1, 2019.

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The
right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability
adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct costs
incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the
underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement
date to the end of the lease term.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. It is remeasured when
there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a change in
the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, or if the
Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.
When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company recognizes the
lease payments associated with these leases as an expense over the lease term.

In the compalatlve peuod leases under whlch the Compdny assumes substantlally all the 1lsks and
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Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (continued)

or present value of the minimum lease payments at the inception of the lease, whichever is lower. Assets
held under leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks and reward of ownership are not
recognized in the balance sheet.

Lease payments under operating lease are generally recognized as an expense in the statement of profit
and loss on a straight-line basis over the term of lease unless such payments are structured to increase in
line with the expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost
increases.

3.11. Earnings/ (loss) per share

The basic earnings/(loss) per share is computed by dividing the net profit/(loss) attributable to equity
shareholders for the period by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year.

The Company does not have potential dilutive equity shares outstanding during the year.

3.12. Income tax

The Income-tax expense comprises current tax and deferred tax. It is recognized in profit and loss except
to the extent that is relates to an item recognized directly in equity or in other comprehensive income.

Current income tax

Current tax comprises the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable income for the year and any
adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The amount of current tax reflects
the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or received after considering the uncertainty, if
any, related to income taxes. It is measured using tax rates (and tax laws) enacted or substantially enacted
by the reporting dates.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off
the recognized amounts, and it is intended to realize the assets and settle the liability on a net basis or
simultaneously.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences between carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for taxation purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period
when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets
and liabilities.
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Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
liabilities and assets, and they relate to income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the same taxable
entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis
or their tax assets and liabilities will be realized simultaneously.

Minimum Alternative tax

According to Section 115JAA of the Income tax Act, 1961, Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid over
and above the normal Income tax in a subject year is eligible for carry forward for fifteen succeeding
assessment year for set-off against normal Income tax liability. The MAT credit asset is assessed against
the entity’s normal income tax during the specified period.

3.13. Impairment
a. Impairment of financial instruments

The Company recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses on financial assets measured at
amortized cost;

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit-
impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit- impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit- impaired includes the following observable data:
— significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

— the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not
consider otherwise;

— it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or
— the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses, except for
the following, which are measured as 12 month expected credit losses:

- debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

- other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default occurring over the
expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit
losses.

Lifetime expected credit losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events
over the expected life of a financial instrument.

12-month expected credit losses are the portion of expected credit losses that result from default events
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months),

In all cases, the maximum period considered when estimating expected credit losses is the maximum
contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating expected credit losses, the Company considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company’s historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including forward- looking information,
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Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (continued)

Measurement of expected credit losses

Expected credit losses are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

Presentation of allowance for expected credit losses in the balance sheet

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying
amount of the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that
there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the Company determines that the
trade receivables does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to
repay the amounts subject to the write- off. However, financial assets that are written oft could still be
subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of
amounts due.

b. Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company’s non-financial assets and inventories are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets that do not generate independent cash inflows are grouped together into
cash-generating units (CGUs). Each CGU represents the smallest group of assets that generates cash
inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or CGUs. -

The recoverable amount of a CGU (or an individual asset) is the higher of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the CGU (or the asset).

The Company’s corporate assets do not generate independent cash inflows. To determine impairment of a
corporate asset, recoverable amount is determined for the CGUs to which the corporate asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its estimated
recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

3.14. Provisions and contingencies

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recovered
from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset, if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will
be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by the Company
from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future obligations under the contract.
Provisions for onerous contracts are measured at the present value of lower of the expectg
fulfilling the contract and the expected cost of terminating the contract.
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Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (continued)

3.15 Operating Cycle

Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of
assets and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as
12 months for the purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.
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Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (continued)

Loans
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)

(a) Non-current
To parties other than related parties

(T in lakhs)

As at
March 31, 2020

As al
March 31, 2019

Security deposits 659.23 61099
659.23 610.99
(b) Current
To parties other than related parties
Sccurily deposils 10.47 7.47
10.47 7.47
Other financial assets
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
(a) Non-current
To parties other than related parties
Bank deposits (due to mature afier 12 months from reporting date)* 40.00 10.00
Interest accrued on {ixed deposits 170 052
41.70 10.52
* above deposits are restrictive as it pertains lo bank guarantee
(b) Current
To parties other than related parties
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 011 0.03
Receivables fiom Dharamshila Cancer Foundation and Research Centre 90536 34753
Unbilled revenue 3147 85.05
936.94 432.61
Income tax assets (net)
Advance income lax and tax deducted al source (net of provisions) 348.85 427.37
348.85 427.37
Other assets
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
(a) Non-current
To parties other than related parties
Capilal advances 501 8892
Prepaid Rent 36277 423.30
Right to use building 983 01 1,147 06
Prepaid exg 4 380 1.02
1,354.69 1.660.30
(b) Current
To parties other than related parties
Prepaid Rent 60.66 60 62
Prepaid expenses 4079 24.03
Right to use building 16410 164 10
Advance (0 vendors 67.56 2302
Other loans and advances 441 441
Other asset 17.63 517
355.15 281.35
Inventories
(Valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
Medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments 54065 502.22
Goods in Transit - 0.50
Less: Provision for write-down to net realisable value (28.05) (10.94)
512.60 491.78

The inventorics are hypothecated as securily as part of working capital lacility.
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Narayana Ilrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (continued)

(T in lakhs)

As at As al
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Trade receivables .
Unsccured, considered good 3,037.68 2,948 83
Unseeured, considered doubtlul (644.32 36642
3,682.00 331525

L.oss allowance
Unsecured, considered doubtful (644 .32) (366 42)
Net trade receivables 3,037.68 2,948.83
Of the above, trade receivables from related partics are as below:
Trade receivable (refer note 33 (c)) - 260 099
Expecled credit loss allowance - -
Net trade receivables from related parties - 2.60 0.99

The Company uses a provision matrix to detennine impairment loss on portfolio of its trade receivable. The provision matrix is based on its historically obser ved defaull rates over he
expecled life of the trade reccivable and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At every year end, the historically observed defaull rates are updated and changes in forward-
looking estimates are analysed. The expected credit loss allowance is based on the ageing of the days (he receivables ate due and the rates as given in the provision matrix The
provision matrix at the end of the reporting period is as follows

Ageing
Category Within due date Due date to 1 Year MorchiianITyeutiom
due date
ESI/CGIIS/SCHEMLES 354% - 8. 84% 16 95%-20.21% 44 M%-57 68%
Others 0.45%-11 81% 10.49%-29 82" 21 96%-54.61%
The Company's exposure to credil risk and currency risks, and loss allowances are disclosed in note 37
The receivables are hypolhecated as security as part of working capilal facility
4
Cash and bank balances
(a) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 2538 220
Balance with banks
-In current accounts 674 .30 301,75
699.68 303.95
() Bank balances other than above
-In deposit accounts (due to mature within 12 months of the reporting date)* 1.00 1.00
1.00 1.00
* nbove deposils are restrictive as it pertains o margin money
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the followings:
Particulars Al kL
Murch 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Cash on hand 2538 220
Balance with banks
-On current accounts 67430 301.75
699.68 30395
|.ess Bank overdrali used lor cash I il purposes ( refer note 14(b) ) 1,084 66 809 49
Cash and cash cquivalents in the statement of cash flows {384.98) (505.54)
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Narayana Ilrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (continuced)

(T in lakhs)

As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

13 (a) Equity share capital

Authorised

23,000,000 equity shares (previous year: 20,000,000 equity shares) of INR 10 each 2,300.00 2,300,00

20,00,000 Preferenceial shares (previous year :Nil equity shares) of INR 10 cach 20000 200.00

Issued, subscribed and paid up

2.27,48,800 (previous year:2,14,65,400) equity shares of X 10 cach, fully paid up 2,274 88 2,146 54
2,274.88 2,146.54

(i) Reconciliation of the equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year:

{2 in laklis, excepl no ol shares)

. As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Particulars : "
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Shaies outstanding at the beginning of the yea 2,14,65,400 2,146.54 1,91,34,500 1,913 45
Shares issued during the year 12,83,400 128.34 23,30,900 233.09
Bonus shares issued during the year - - - -
Shares oulstanding at (he end of the year 2,27.48,800 2,274 88 2.14,65.400 2,146 54

(ii) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to equity shares

The Company has a single class of equity shares refered to as equity shates having a nominat value ol ¥ 10 each Accordingly, all equity sharcs rank equally with regaid to dividend
and share in the Company's residual assets. Each holder of equity shares is entitled lo one vole per share. The cquity shares are entitled Lo receive dividend as declared from time to

lime. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject (o the approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all
distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by shareholders

(iii) Shares held by Holding Company

preferential amounts. The

(2 in lakhs, except no of shares)

Particulars As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount(
Liquity shares of 2 10 cach fully paid up held by
-Narayana Ilrudayalaya Limited 2,27.48,800 2.274 88 2.14.65 400 2.146 54
(iv) Particulars of sharcholders holding more than 5% cquity shares:
i As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019
Particulars . .
Number of shares* % holding Number of shares % holding,
Narayana [ lnudayalaya Limited 2,27.48,800 100.00% 2.14.65.400 100.00%
(v) The Company has not bought back any shares during the period of five years immedialely preceding the last balance sheet date
Further, the Company has not issued any shares for consideration other than cash during the petiod of five years immediately preceding the last balance sheet date
* Nolte: Number of shares includes 6 shares held by registered sharcholders holding on behalf of beneficial shareholder i ¢. Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited
13 (b) Other Equity
Reserves and surplus
Securitics premium reserve
Al the commencement of the year 7,034.12 4,268 81
Add: Securities premium on issue of equity shares during the year 1.999.48 2.765.31
Al the end ol the year 9,033.60 7,034.12
Relained camings
At the commencement ol the year (7.931 21) (4,470 85)
Add: Net profit/(loss) afier lax transferred from statement of prolit and loss (3,779 80) (3.460 36)
Add: tmpact on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 (net ofl'tax) (103 33) -
Al the end of the ycar (11,814.34) (7,931.21)
Other Comprehiensive Income
At the commencement of the year (11.63) (10.89)
Add: Addition during the year (27.86) (0.74)
At the end of the year (39.49) (11.63)
(2,820.23) (908.72)

Securities premium reserve
Securities premium is used to record the premium received on issue of shares. It is utilised in accordance with the provisions of the Companics Act, 2013

Surplus
Surplus represents prior year undistributed eaming / ( losses).

Other Comprchensive Income
Other (,'lnnp:_'ql_ums_ivc Income represents acturial gain or loss or re-measurement of defined benelits obligation
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Narayana lrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (continued)

(X in lakhs)

Asat As al
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
14 Borrowings
(a) Non-current
Secured
Term loans
IFrom banks (refer note [ ) 3,248.68 393581
Less: Curvent maturity of long term debt |refer note 16 (b)) (68713} (BS7 13)
Total non-current borrowings 2,561.55 3078.68
(b) Current
To parties other than related parties
Seeured
Bank overdrafis ( refer note 1) 1,084 66 809 49
To related parties
Unsecured
1.oans repayablc on demand ( refer note 11) 72500 -
Total current borrowings 1,809.66 809.49

| Term loans from banks :
Slno Details of repayment terms, interest and maturity Nature of security
| Term Loan from 11SBC : T 2550.00 lakhs (previous year : T 3230.00 lakhs) repayable in 15 quaterly instalments [rom reporting imm:\:tl)llred \ga;:m:)b;.aﬁ::: lal::: (Iij(e)fsil(:; (::xcivalc

M date. Inlerest is charged @ 8.90% p.a (previous year 8.65%) © property A imilc({ P

(i Term loan from Yes Bank : ¥ 254.80 lakhs (previous year: T 257.40 lakhs) repayable in 32 quaterly instalments from May 2018.

iD [nterest is charged @ 9.80% pa (previous year : 9.90%)

i Term lo:}n lrom Yes Banko: k4 230'98. lakhs (previoui year: T 233.34 lakhs) repayable in 32 quaterly instaiments [iom May 2018. | £ olucive chatge on Movable Fixed assels (presont
Interest is charged @ 9.80% pa (previous year : 9.90%) and future) and current assets ol the borrower
(iv) “Term loan from Yes Bank : ¥ 90.22 lakhs (previous year: ¥ 91 14 lakhs) repayable in 32 quaterly instalments fiom November (present and [uture) excluding those charged to any
™) 12018, Interest is charged (@ 9.80% pa (previous ycar : 9.90%) other lender/vendor and those charged lo Yes Bank
e loan from Yes Bank : T 67.99 lakhs (previous year: ¥ 68 69 lakhs) repayable in 32 quaterly instalments (rom March 2019 INC Iac'h’“(]:?t CO"API(‘MICI L_m"?:r‘“}‘clcl a]nid sczunly ﬂo/m
) Interest is charged @@ 9 80% pa (previous year : 9,90%) arayana Hryudalaya Limited (I olding Company)
N Term loan from Yes Bank : T 54.69 lakhs (previous year: ¥ 55.24 lakhs) iepayable in 32 quaterly instalments from May 2018

(3 Interest is charged @ 9.80% pa (previous year : 9.90%)

11 Overdraft facilities, working capital loan and commercial papers from bank :

(i) Overdrafl facility fiom Yes Bank Limited 2 1084.66 lakhs (previous year: T 809.49 lakhs) carry {nterest rate of 0.30% above the 3 month MCLR (previous year :0.30% above the 3
months MCLR), to be paid on monthly basis. 1t is secured by current asscts (both present and future), subservient charge on movable lixed assels and corpotale puaranice ol Narayana
Irudayalaya Limiled

(i) Loan from Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited: % 725.00 lakhs (previous year: nil) {refer note 33 (c)]
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Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (continued)

15 Lease liabilities

(a) Non-current

{Tin lakhs)

As at
March 31, 2020

Asat
March 31, 2019

Ieasc liability as on April 1, 2019 805.89 -
Additions during the period .
Finance cosl accrued during the period 63.48 .
Lease payment (101.86)
Lease liability as on March 31, 2020 767.51 -
Less: Current lease hiability (123.63) -
643,88 -
(b) Current
Icase liability as on March 31, 2020 123 63 -
123.63 =
16  Other financial liabilities
(a) Non-current
To parties other than related parties
Liability lowards business acquisition 928029 9,720.75
Creditors for capital poods 83.88 8128
9,364.17 9,802.03
(b) Current
To parties other than related parties
Liability towards business acquisition 440 11 440 11
Current maturities of long-term borrowings [refer note 14 (a)] 687 13 857.13
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 12.13 556
Deposits Reccived 12.70 1320
Creditors for eapital goods 752.76 215.63
1,904.83 1,531.63
The Company's exposure to liquidity risk and cunency risk are disclosed in note 37
17  Provisions
(a) Non-current
Provision for employee benelits (Reler Note 31)
Gratuity 107.27 6126
107,27 61.26
(b) Current
Provision lor employee benelits (Refer Note 31)
Graluity 27 04 1872
Compensated abscnces 133 84 116 77
160.88 135.49
18 Trade payables
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises (Refer Note 32) 124 .80 119.93
“Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 3.934.15 3.401.51
4,058.95 3,521.44
*wilh respect 1o amount payable to related parties frefer note 33 (c)]
The Company's exposure to currency and liquidity risks related Lo trade payable is disclosed in nole 37.
19 Other current liabilitics
To partics other than related parties
Contract liabilities 157.00 98.36
Balances due to slatulory/ government authorities 93.15 9853
Unearned revenue 44 .42 3607
Other linbilities (.28 0.28
294.85 233.24
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Narayana IIrudayalaya Surgical Ilospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (continued)

20 Revenue from operations

(X in 1akhs)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Parti_culars March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Income from medical and healthcare services 14,733.83 13,945 62
Salc of medical consumables and drugs 5.367.85 4,028.43
Other operating revenue:
Income from other healthcare services 5.01 6.23
Revenuc share income - 2.04
20,106.69 17,982.32

Refer notes below

(i) Category of Customer

KFor the year ended

March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

Cash 12,044.89 10,827.86
Credil 8.061.80 7.154.46
20,106.69 17,982.32

(i) Nature of treatment

For the year ended

March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31,2019

In-patient 10.950.62 10.962 02
Out-patient 3.783.21 2.983 60
Sale of medical consumables and drugs 5.367.85 4,028.43
Others 5.01 8.27

20,106.69 17,982.32

(iii) The revenue from rendering Healthcare services and Pharmaceutical products salisfics ‘at a point in time’ recognition criteria as prescribed by Ind

AS 115

(iv) ‘Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations

Particulars

For the year ended

March 31,2020

[For the year ended
March 31, 2019

Contract liabilitics

157.00

98.36

157.00

98.36

(v

—

Use of Practical expedients
Transaction price allocated to the remaining performance obligations

The Company has applicd the practical expedient with respeet Lo non disclosure of information in respect of remaining performance obligations
considering the act that the company’s performance obligations, iL.c. the trealment in case of healthcare segment has an original expected duration

ol onc year or less

2

—

Other income

(¥ in lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31,2019

Interest income on

- Bank deposits 1.25 2.29

- Income Tax Refund 19 90 5.68
Interest income from financial asset at amortised cost 46,42 42.19
Profit on Sale of Property, plant and equipment - 018
Miscellaneous income 33.78 43.70
101.35 94.04
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Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Ilospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statcments for the year ended March 31, 2020 (continued)

22 Changes in inventories of medical consumables, drugs and surgical instruments - (Increase)/Decrease

23

24

For the year ended

FFor the year ended

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31,2019

Inventory at the beginning of the year 491.78 398.78

Inventory at the end of the year 512,61 491.78
(20.83) (93.00)

Employee benefit expenses

(3 in lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31,2019

Salaries, wages and bonus 3,489.95 3,22621
Contribution Lo provident and other funds (refer notc 31) 157.91 136.30
Staff welfare expenses 55.87 65.60

3,703.73 3,428.11

Other expenses

(T in lakhs)

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31,2019

Particulars
Ilospital operating expenses
Rent 54597 665.72
Patient welfare expenses 60.70 6393
Power and fucl 687 37 651.83
Hospital general expenses 28135 238.05
1louse keeping expenses 669.28 58227
Medical gas charges 28.59 3225
Biomedical wastage expenscs 7.02 7.34
Repairs and maintenance
- Hospital equipments 346.11 344.70
- Buildings 98.48 53.05
- Others 305.40 269.40
Total (A) 3.030.27 2,908.54
Administrative expenses
‘I'raveling and conveyance 11598 13343
Sccurity charges 190.38 181.43
Printing and stationery 119.72 111.18
Rent 140.40 162.85
Advertiscment and publicity 877.48 75491
Legal and professional fees (refer note (i) below) 81.55 99.34
Telephone and communication 60.55 43.08
Bank charges 63.02 57.29
Insurance 11.88 3.03
Rates and taxes 66 82 4641
IForeign [:xchange L.oss 0.12 -
Provision for loss allowance 277.90 190,62
Corporate Social Responsibility 0.05 -
Subscription & Books & Periodicals 17.69 14.93
1.oss on Property, plant and cquipment discarded 001 -
Miscellaneous expenses 832 9.16
Total (B) 2,031.87 1,807.66
Total (A+B) 5,062.14 4,716.20




Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (continued)

(i) Payment to auditors®

(T in lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019

As an auditor
(i) Audit fee

8.00 8.00
(ii) Other attest services 5.00 10.00
13.00 18.00

*excluding GST

25 Finance costs

(X in lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31,2019

Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost

- term loans from banks

319.60 380 57

- bank overdraft 80.17 41.62

- olhers 56.36 3843
Interest expense on lease liabilities 63.48 -

Interest expense on business acquisition 1544.03 1,590.00

2,063.64 2,050.62

26 Depreciation and amortisation expense

(T in lakhs)

Particulars

For the year ended
March 31, 2020

For the year ended
March 31, 2019 .

Depreciation ol property, plant and equipment (refer note 4) 928.47 862.62

Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 4) 46535 466.45

Depreciation of Right to use Asscts (refer note 5) 90.07 -
1,483.89 1,329.07
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Narayana Irud;
Notes 10 the fina

Taospital Private Limited
ial statements for ihe year ended Mareh 31, 2020 (continued)

27 Conli iahilities and i
(i) Contingent liabilities

llie Company does nat have any contngent liability as on Marclh 31, 2020 (previous sear: nil)

(i) Commitments

amoumts ol ining 1o be exceuted on capilal account (het of adyances) and not provided for anwounts to ¥ 14 52 laklis (March 31, 20119: ¥ 709 54 lakhs)

28 Sepment reporting
Operating Segments

Ind AS 108 “Operating Scgment™ (“Ind AS 1087) cstablishes standards for the way that public business ealerprises report i aboul operali and relaed di aboul products and
scnices. geopraphic mcas. and major Based an the Pp! as defincd in Ind AS 108, Operating scgments are to be reponed in a manner consistent with the iniemal reporting provided
10 the Chicf Operating Decision Maker (CODM). ‘The CODM cvaluates the Company's performance and allocates resources on overall basis The Company s sole operating segment is thercfore “Medicat and

IHealth Services’ A lingly. there arc no additional discl to be provided under Ind AS 108, other than those already provided in llic financial slalements
Georaphical information
Geographical information analyscs the Company's revenue and non-current assels by the Company's country of domicile (i ¢ India) and other countrics. In p ing the hi i segment

revenue has been based on the geographical location of the customers and scgment asscts whicli have been based on the geographical location of the assets Since. the Company has anly one geographical location

i'cIndia with respect to location of assets and location of customers. [urther details about geographical informatian is not apphicable

The Company has adopied Ind AS 116 'Leases'. ellectine anmal reponting period beginung April 1 2109 Ind AS 116 replaces Ind AS 17 Leases and aclated mierpretation and puidance  The Campany has
applicd 1he standard 10 115 leases. using the modified retrospectise approach. with the cumsilan ¢ elfeet of imually appdy g the Standard. recopnized an the date ol iual applicauon (Apnl 1 2019y Comparatine
information has nol been restated

Accardungly. the Company recorded the |ease liability al the present value of the Iease payments discounied at the incremental borrawing rate and the right of use asscl al 11s carrying amonnt as 1 the standard had

been applicd since the commencement date of the lease. bul discounted at the Company s incremental boriowmg rate at the date of imitial application

The following is a summary of practical expedients clected by the Company an initial application:

Applicd a single discount rate to a porifolio of leascs with reasonably simitar characieristics in similar cconomic eny ironnicnt
Treated leases with remaining leasc term of less than 12 months as if they were "short term Jeases”

Applied the nol to pnize right-of-use asscts and liabililies for leases of low value assels

Application ol hindsight. 1 determining the Jease term if the contracl contiins options to exiend or tenminate the lease

O transition 1o fud AS 116, 1lic Company iscd right-ol-usc asscls ing 1o 3 702 56 lakhs. reloled I lep to il Iease habititics amounmng 1o ¥ 805 RY lakhs and 2
10333 Jakhs in retnined carnings as ot April 1. 2019 The Company has discounted lense payinents using the applicable incremeital borrowing rale as al April 1. 2019 which is B% for incasuring the lease
liability
G} Thie fullowing table prodides the inipact of tion of Ind AS | 16 oo retained g (8 i bbb
. Ava
Farsisuliy ‘ March 31, 2020
Jinpaer ol resainiel eatnimgs s s Apeil | 2019 (113 30
(1113.33)

(% in Lk

44 Barticiitar .“u(rh.ll‘:l:;::
Correny fease Dokl 12363
Mo-cvireni lease labilines S 15

— 76151

(i, The followsng 1s te meoveniont m e ease liabilites dig ie sear ended March 312020 (R in Lukhs)

Asa
Particulies March 3. 2('1‘(:
Balance as ot Apnil | 209 KOS RY
Additions
FFinance cost accrued during the year 6348
Delctions .
Pavurent of lease liabilitics (1 Kb
767,51

(iv) The table below provides details regarding the contractual maturitics of ienial payments as of March 31, 2020
(2 in dnkhsy

Less than |

9 1-2years 2-5yvars Muore than S yenrs Tatal
Furticulars vear .
Contaeiual tental praymests 140 67 159 89 30538 678 |0 128104
140.67 159.89 JU5.34 (78.1 1284.04
30 Deferred tax e1s/(Tinbilities)
Delerved 1ax asscts and liabililics arc atributable to the followin
@ o ahs)
Particulirs For the year ended Far the year ended
March 31, 2020 Murgh 31, 2014
Deferred tax asset
Provision for doubtfiit recensables 395 Ly
Provision for gratuity 1964 17 40
Proyvision far compensated absences 1% 10 1761
On brought forward loss 165273 17z
Provision Tor slow & non moving i entory 056 LR
Bonus payable K43 Lty
Unabsorbed [eprecianion 97 94 YA
Tulal delerred fax asset [RLEE]] L6290
Deferved (ax lishility
Excess of deprecialion on fixed asscl under Income Tax Act. 1961 over deprecintion under Companies Act
[{HEERM] (%20 iy
Tntal dheferred tax lability {1.197.92) (K24 thiy

Beferred fay msset (net) 605,19 BAvESn




Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 20620 (continued)

31 Employee benefits

Defined contribution plan
The Company makes contributions towards provident fund and employec slate insurance Lo a defined contribution retirement benefit plan for qualilving employees Under the
plan, the Company is required to contribute a specified percenlage of payroll cost Lo the retirement benelit plan to fund the benelfits.

The amount recognised as an expense towards contribution to Provident JFund and Employee State Insurance for the year aggregated to Z 157.91 lakhs (previous year: X
114.03 lakhs)

Defined benefit plan

The Company operates post-employment defined benefit plan that provide gratuity. The gratuity plan entitles an employee, who has rendered al least five years ol continuous
service, to receive one-hall month's salary for cach year of completed service at the time ol retirement/exil. The gratuity fund is administered by a trust formed for this purpose
and is managed by Kotak Life Insurance. The Company’s obligation in respect of the gratuity plan, which is a defined benefit plan, is provided lor based on acluarial valuation
carried out by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method. The Company recognizes actuarial gains and losses immediately in the statement of prolit and
loss. The Company accrues gratuity as per the provisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 as applicable as at the balance sheel date

A. Based on the actuarial valuation obtained in this respect, the following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan and the amounts recognised in the Company’s financial

statements as at balance sheet date:

(X in lakhs)

Particulars As at R

March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Delined benelit obligations liability 184 07 148 .87
Plan asscts 4977 68 89
Net defined benelit liability 134 30 79 98
Liability for compensated absences 133 84 11677
Total employee benefit liability 268.14 196.75
Non-current 107 27 6126
Current 160 87 13549

Reconciliation of net defined benefit (assets) liability

The following table shows a reconciliation from the opening balances 1o the closing balances for net defined benelit (asset) liability and its components

i) Reconciliation of present values of defined benefit obligation

(X in lakhs)

Particulars As at e
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Delined benefit obligation as at | April 148 87 129 96
Benelits paid
-By the lund (10.70) (3.59)
-By the Company (11.59) (5 85)
Current service cost 22.56 1995
Interest cost 781 693
Actuarial (gains)/ losscs recognised in other comprehensive income
-changes in demographic assumptions 3170 040
-changes in financial assumptions 213 058
-experience adjustements 2129 049
Defined benefit obligations as at 31 March 184.07 148.87
i) Reconciliation of present values of plan assets (¥ in lakhs)
Particulars Asat Asat
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Plan assets at beginning of the year 68.89 67.24
Acquisition - -
Interest income 4.55 451
Employer contribution 0.44 -
Benelits paid (10.70) (359)
Adjustment to opening [air value (12.67) .
Aclurial gain/(loss) on plan asscts (074) 073
Plan assets at the end of the year 49.77 68.89
Net defined benefit liability 134,30 79.98
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Narayana ITrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (continued)

31 Employce benefits (continued)

C.

i) Expense recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss (Xin lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended FFor the year ended
March 31, 2020 Mureh 31, 2019
Current service cost 22,56 1995
Interest cost 326 242
Past service cost / (benelit) s .
25.82 22.37
ii) Remeasurements recognised in other compherensive income (T in lakhs)
Particulars For the year ended FFor the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Actuarial (gain)/ loss on defined benefit obligation 27.12 147
Return on plan assets excluding interest income 0.74 (0.73)
27.86 0.74
Plan Assets
Plan assets comprises ol the lollowing: (X in lakhs)
Parti For the year ended IFor the year ended
articulars ’
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Pooled asscts with an insurance company 49.77 68.89
49.77 68.89
The nature ol assets allocation of plan assets is in government securities and debt instruments of high credil rating
Defined Benefit obligation
i) Actuarial assumptions
The following are the principal actuarial assumplions at the reporting date (expressed as weighled averages):
Princi . i As al As at
rincipal actuarial assumptions
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Allrition rate 40.00% 44 75%
Discount rate 5.35% 6.63%
TGN IALM (20]2-]4) IALM (20()§-()8)
Ultimate Ultimate
. . 0% lor Iirst Year 6% 9% lor First Year 6%
Future salary increases X
therealler therealler

Assumptions regarding luture mortality are based on published statistics and mortality tables
As ol March 31, 2020, the plan assets have been invested in insurer managed funds for Dharamshila unit and the expecled contributions to the Tund during the year ending

March 31,2021, is approximately ¥ 38.66 lakhs (previous year: 343,29 lakhs).

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation (X in lakhs)
Particulars Amounl
I'st following year 6570
2nd following year 4507
3rd following year 34 50
4th lollowing year 26.69
5th following year 2071
Year 6 1o 10 4540

As at 31 March 2020. the average duration of the defined benefit obligations was 30 years (previous year: 30 years)
ii) Sensitivity analysis
Reasonably possible changes al the reporting dale to one of the relevant acluarial assumplions. holding other assumptions constant, would have aflected the defined benefit

obligation by the amounts shown below
(T in lakhs)

. March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Particulars
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
Discount rate (0.5% movement) 210 2.14 (1.38) | 43
FFuture salary increases (0.5% movement) 1.88 (1.87) 1.26 (123)
Attrition rate (0.5 % movement) (0.46) 047 (0.34) 035
Mortalily rate (0.10% movement) 0.01 (0.01) 00! -

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash lows expected under the plan, it docs provide an approximation ol the sensitivily of the assumptions
shown
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Narayana 1lrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (continued)

32 Due to Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

“'he Ministry of Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises has issued an office memorandum dated 26 Auguslt 2008 which recommends that the Micro and Small Enterprises
should mention in their correspondence with its customers the Entrepreneurs Memorandum Number as allocated after filing of the Memorandum. Accordingly, the disclosure
in respect of the amounts payable lo such enterprises as at March 31, 2020 has been made in the financial slatements based on information received and available with Lhe
Company. Further in view of the management, the impact of interest, if any, that may be payable in accordance wilh the provisions ol the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 (“The MSMED Act’) is not expected Lo be material. The Company has not received any claim for interest from any supplier

(T in lakhs)
. As at As at
Particulars
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
"I'he amounts remaining unpaid to micro and small supplicrs
as al the end of the year
-Principal 124 76 11769
-Interest 0.04 224
The amount of interest paid by the buyer as per the
MSMED Act i -
The amount of payments made to micro and small suppliers
beyond the appointed day during the accounting year;, )
The amount of interest due and payable for the period of
delay in making payment (which have been paid but beyond
the appointed day during the year) but wilhout adding the
interest specified under the MSMED Act,
I'he amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the 004 524

end of each accounling year

The amount of further interest remaining duc and payable
cven in the succeeding years, until such date when the
interest dues as above arc actually paid to the small
enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under the MSMED Act
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Narayaun Hlrudayalaya Surgical LHospital Private Limited
Notes to the finnncial stntements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (continued)

33 Related party disclosures

(a) Details of related parties

Nalure of relationship Name of related parties
Enterprise having control over the Company Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited
Key Management Personnel (KMP) Dr. Devi Prasad Shelty - Director and Chairman of the Holding Company
Shankuntala Shetty - Director
Dr Emmanuel Rupert-Managing Director
Ravindra KS - Chief Financial Officer
Hemish Purushottam - Company Secrelary
Key Management Personnel (KMP) of the Holding Dr. Ashutosh Raghuvanshi - Managing Direclor of the Holding Company (Till February 10, 2019)
Company Viren Shelty- Whole Time Director of the Holding Company
Kesavan Venugopalan- Chief Financial Officer of the Holding Company
Sridhar S- Company Secretary of the Holding Company
Narayana Institute for Advanced Research Private Limited (NIARPL)
Narayana | lospitals Private Limited (NIIPL) ;
Narayana | lealth Institutions Privale Limited (NHIPL)
Narayana Cayman Holdings Limited (NCHL)
Narayana | Irudayalaya tlospitals Malaysia SDN. BIID (NHITM) (till Apnil 24, 2018)
Fellow subsidiares Meridian Mcdical Research & Ilospital Limiled (MMRHL)
Narayana | laldings Private Limited (NHDPL) (Subsidiary of NCHIE w e f June 6. 2018 )
Narayana Vaishno Devi Specialty [ lospitals Private Limited (NVDSIIPL)
NI ilealth Bangltadesh private Limited (Subsidiary of NIDPL we [ July 22, 2018)
Health City Cayman Islands Limited (1CCI) (Subsidiary of NCIHIL w e I January 2, 2018)
Narayana !1calth North Amenica L1LC (we { April 9, 2019)
Enuty under control/ joint control of KMP/KMP of Narayana Hrudayalaya Foundation '
1oldine company and their relalives Amaryllis lealthcaie Private Limited
Associale of lolding Company I'rimedx India Private Limited
(b) Transactions with related party during the year ended March 31, 2020
(¥ in Inkhs)
Enterprise having control AL L ] T (I Key Management
Transactions KMP/KMP of Holding company and Associate of Holding Company Taotal
over the company . ) Personnel (KMP)
their relatives
L.ease rentnl expense
Naravana | lrudayalaya Lamited (22 :2) : N (:Z 22)
Narayana | liudayalaya Foundation : (;(I) zi) (;(l) 22)
49.56 11.82 61.38
Total
(49.56) (86.34) (135.90)
Purchase of Property, plant & equipment
Narayana Hrudayalaya limited ‘ 1683 | ] ! | | | 16 35_
Uunsecured loan taken
Narayana | [rudayalaya Limiled ‘ ‘;?2 gg]l ; I I L ‘ (;3?5) ?)g)
Tuterest expenses
Narayana | Irudayalaya Limted I (32 2121) | ‘ ‘ (5‘; j;l)
Payment of unsecured loan
197
Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited | é;i: 88) _ | \ \ (5?;; 83)
Reimbursement of expenses
Narayana Hrudayalaya Limiled | (gg (7)2) : ] | | (gg (7)2)
Issue of equity shares
Bl 3
Narayana | lrudayalaya Limited (;(I)(Z); 3(2)) : ‘ | | (E‘])EI; 36)
Corporate gunrunice piven by holding company
5 L 3,500 00 - - 3.500 00
Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited (3500 00) E \ l A ‘ (3,500 00)
Purclinse of medical consumnbles and drugs nnd Services
. 8 3952 - 3952
Narayana | [rudayalaya Limiled (128.24) E 2 (128 24)
i . N " - 5213 - 5213
Amaryllis llealtheare Private Limiled ] (55.26) = (55 26)
Total 39.52 52.13 91.65
(128.24) (55.26) (183.50)
Sule of medical consumables nnd drugs and Serviees
Narayana Hiudayalaya Limited 2893 g i Bl
e ’ (0.99) - 10 90)
Narayana Vaishno Dew Speeralty Hospials Private - 260 260
Lamited :
Short-term enployee beiefits*
% 5239 5239
Ravindia KS (46 79) (46 19)
= 1771 1771
lemish Purushottam ] (14 36} {14 80)
: - 70.10 70.10
Towl . . (61.65) (61.65)

Figures i brackels are [or the previous year
Note:

The remuneration to KMP does not include the provisions made for gratuity and compensaled absences, as they are obtained on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole

*I'he amounts are determined as per section 17(2) of the Income lax Act, 1961 read with Lhe related Rules
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Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical lospital Private Limited
Notes to the linancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (continued)

33 Related party disclosures (continued)

¢) The balances receivable from and payable to related parties

(¥ in lakhs)

Entity under control/ joint
Enterprise having control | control of fellow subsidiary, Associate of ITolding -
Balances . ‘ Total
over the company KMP/KMP of Holding Company
company and their relatives
Trade payables
L 41893 - 41893
Narayana [ Irudayalaya Limited (295 26) ) (295.26)
: . _ - 0.79 079

Amaryllis Healthcare Private Limited i (5.99) (5.99)
Total 418.93 0.79 - 419.72

(295.26) (5.99) = (301.25)
Trade receivables
Narayana | {rudayalaya Limited (0'99) : i {0'9():

. . . . . - - - 0
Narayana Vaishno Devi Specialty 1ospitals Private Limited Zp0 2‘6
Corporate guarantee given / released by the holding company (
Net)
S 7,100.00 7.100 00

Narayana Hrudayalaya Limited (7.100.00) (7.100 00)
Unsecured loan given by the holding company
Narayana !rudayalaya Limiled 72500 ) ?25_00

IFigures in brackets are for the previous year

Note:

(a) No amount in respect of related parties have been wrilen off/back or provided for during the year.

(b) Related party relationships have been identitied by the Management and relied upon by the auditors
(c)The terms and conditions of the transactions with related parties were no more favourable than those available, or those which might rcasonably be expecled to be available, in
respect of similar transaclions with other than related entilies on an arm’s length basis
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Narayana llrudayalaya Surgical Iospital Private Limited
Notes to the linancial statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (continued)

34 Earnings/(Loss) per share

3

n

=%

Basic and diluted loss per share
The calculation of basic and diluted carnings/ (loss) per share for the year ended March 31, 2020 was based on loss attributable to equity sharcholders of’ ¥ 3,779 80
lakhs (March 31, 2019: ¥ 3,460 36 lakhs) and weighted average number of equity share outstanding 2,18.48.592 (Maich 31, 2019: 1,98,87,653)

(2 in lakhs, except no of shares)

FFor the year ended  For the year ended

GARHiEHaS March 31,2020 March 31,2019
Profit/ (loss) afler tax (3,779.80) (3,460 36)
Total no of shates outstanding 2,14,65.400 1,91,34,500
ifect of shares issued during the year 3.83,192 7,53,153
Weighted average number of equity shares (basic/diluted) for the year 2,18,48,592 1,98,87,653
Basic and diluted carnings/(loss) per share (%) (17.30) (17.40)

( Nominal valuc per shaie ¥ 10)

Capital management

The Company's policy is to maintain a stable capital base so as to maintain investor, creditor and market conlidence and to sustain future development of the business
Managenient monilors capital on the basis of return on capital employed as well as the debt to lotal equily ratio

Ior Lhe purpose of debt Lo lotal equity ratio, debt considered is long-term and short-term borrowings. Tolal equity comprise of issued share capilal and all other equity
reserves,

The capital structure as ol March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 was as [ollows:
(T in lakhs)

Particulars stat OIEl
March 31, 2020 Murch 31, 2(HY
Tolal equity attributable to the equity sharcholders of the Company (545 35) 1,237 82
As a percentage of total capital -12% 21%
Long-term borrowings including current maturities 3,248.68 393581
Short-term borrowings 1,809.66 80949
Total borrowings 5,058 34 4,74530
As a percentage of total capital 112% 79%
Total capital (Equity and Borrowings) 4,512.99 5,983.12

Ilealtheare Service Agreement with Dharamshila Cancer Foundation and Research Centre (DCFRC)

On March 31, 2017, Company enlered into Healthcare Services Agreement ("Agreement") with Dharamshila Cancer Foundation and Research Centre ("Society™)
Accordingly, the Company has a control over the operations of Dharamshila Hospital and Research Centre ("Hospilal") and provide heallhcare services using the
assels which are awned by the society. The arrangement of the Company with the Society attracts the application of business combination as per IND AS103. The
Company commenced the provision of healthcare services at the Hospital on 1st April 2017 ("Commencement Date"). The term of the Agicement is 25 years, which
the Parties may extend for a further period on such terms as may be mutually agreed. Neither Party shall have the right to lerminate the Agreement before 10 years off
the Commencement Date. The Hospital is renamed as "Dharamshila Narayana Superspeciality 1lospital, A Unit of Dharamshila Cancer Foundation And Research
Cenlie” as per the Agreement

In terms of the Agreement, the Sociely is entitled to retain an annual revenue amount of 2 1,800 lakhs per annum with an annual escalation of 5% during the term the
Company is in control of the operations ol the tHospital, The fair value, applying the Discounted Cash Flow approach based on discount rate of 15 23% is determined
by discounting the estimated annual amounts of revenue which the Society is entitled to retain from the Commencement Date. The excess amount of such fair value

over the fair value of nel assets of the 1lospital, which the Company uses in exercise control over the operations of the Haspilal, has been attributed towards poodwill

The fair value accordingly has been attributed to use of the following assets based on Management’s estimates:

(X in lakhs)
Component Acquisition dal:;:::,
Property, plant and equipment 3,576.81
Right to usc building 1,639.36
Intangible assels 4,637 00
Total 9.853.17
Goodwill 790.00
Total purchase price 10,643.17

The intangible asscts are amortised over a period of ten years as per management’s eslimale of its usclul life, based on the life over which economic benelits are
expecled Lo be realized.

The goodwill amounting to Z 790 lakhs comprises value of benefits of expected synergics, future revenue, future market developments, assembled workforee, ete

None of the goodwill arising on the acquisition is expected to be deductible for tax purposes

"The Company has paid an interest-free refundable securily deposit amounting to T 1,000 lakhs to the Socicty as per the Agreement. Security deposil was discounted
and the differential was treated as prepaid rent and amortised over (he term of the Agrecment

Refer note 4 and nole 38 regarding provision lor impairment recognized in the books relating o the Dharamshila unit and the allocation of the same 1o iy
intangible assets ol the Unil .
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Narayana Hrudayalaya Surgical Iospital Private Limited
Notes to the financial statements for the year ended March 31,2020 (continued)

37 Financial instruments: Fair value and risk managements

A. Accounting classification and fair values

(T in Inkhs)

As nt March 31,2020

Amortised cost

Total

Finuncial assets

Trade receivables 3,037 68 3,037 68
Cash and cash equivalents 699 68 699 68
Bank balances other than above 1.00 1 00
[.oans 669 70 669 70
Other [inancial assels 978 64 978 64
5.386.70 5,386.70

Financial liabilities
Borrowings 4371 21 137121
Lease liabilies 767 51 767 51
Trade payables 4.058 95 4,058 95
Chher financial liabolines 11,269 00 11,2649 00
20,466.67 20,466.67

(T in lakhs)

As at 31 March 2019

Amortised cost

Total

Financial assets

Trade receivables 2,948 83 2,948 83
Cash and cash equivalents 30395 N3 95
Bank balances other than above 100 100
Loans 61846 618 46
Other financial assets 443 |3 443 |13
4,315.37 4,315.37
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 3,888 17 31,888 17
I'rade payables 3,521 44 3.521 44
Other financial liabilities 1133366 11,333 66
18,743.27 18,743.27

Measurement of fair values

The carmying value of all financial assets approximates the fair value

B. Financinl risk management
The Company's activilies expose 1t Lo a variety of linancial risks ciedit nsk. market risk and hquidity 11sk

(i) Risk management lramework
‘I'he Company's risk management is carried out by a central treasury department under policies approved by the Board of Directors The Board supervises averall 1isk management, as well
as policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, credit risk and use of financial instruments

(ii) Credit risk
Credit risk 1s the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to financial loss The credit risk anses prineipally from ats
operating activilies {primarily trade receivables) and from its investing activities, including deposils with banks and linancial institutions and other financial instruments

Credit risk is controlled by analysing credit Jimits and creditworthiness of customers on a continuous basis to whom credil has been granted afler obtaining necessary approvals for credit
The collection from the trade receivables are monitored on a continuous basis by the reccivables team

The Company establishes an allowance for credit loss that represents its cstimate of expected losses in respect of trade and other reccivables based on the past and the recent collection
trend “The maximum exposure Lo credit risk as al reporting date is primarily from trade receivables amounting 1o € 3,710 06 lakhs (March 31,2019 ¥ 3,315 25 lakhs) The movement in
allowance for credit loss in respect of trade and other receivables during the year was as follows

(Tin lnkhs)
i As ot As at
All ce edit |
bttt March 31,2020 March 31,2019
Opening balance 366 42 175 80
fixpected credit loss recognised 27790 190 62
Closing balance 644.32 366.42

No single customer accounted for more than 10% of the revenuc as of March 31. 2020 and March 31. 2019 There 15 no significant concentration of credit risk

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalent is limited as the Company penerally (ransacts with banks and financial msututions with high eredit ratings assigned by internanional and domeshic
credil raling agencies

(iii) Liquidity risk

Laquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations assoeiated with its financial liabillies that are settled by delivering eash or another financial
asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidity is Lo ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilitics when they are due. urder both normal and
stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage Lo the Company’s reputation In addition, the Company maintains line ol credit as stited n Note 13

‘The Company believes that the working capital is sufficient to meet its current requirements Accordingly, no liquidity risk is perceived

The table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities ol significant linancial liabilitics as of March 31, 2020
(Tin lakhs)

Particulars Less than | year 1-2yeirs 2-5 years More than § vears Total
Borrowings 2,666.79 70852 562 84 433 6 437t 20
|ease liabilities 81 86 108 98 196 58 38009 767 51
Trade payables 4,058 95 . - - 4,058 95
Other financial liabihines 206297 9.165.19 38 98 1 86 11,269 00
Total 8,870.57 9,982.69 798.40 815.01 20,466.67




Narayana lHrudayalaya Surgical Hospital Private Limited
Notes to the financinl statements for the year ended March 31, 2020 (continued}

37 Financial instruments: Fair value and risk managements (continued)
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Fhe table below provides details regarding the undiscounted contractual maturities of significant financial liabilitics as of March 31, 2019:
(Tin lukhs)

Particulars Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-5 years More than 5 years Total
Borrowings 1,666.62 |,395 65 1,249 97 433 06 4,745 30
Tiade payables 3,521 44 a . - 3,521 44
OLher financial habilties 674 .50 624 04 3,193.48 598451 10,476.53
Total 5,862.56 2,019.69 4,443.45 6,417.57 18,743.27

(iv) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the [air value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fuctuate because of changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates and nterest rates

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
The Company's main interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Company to cash flow inlerest rate risk
(a) Interest rate risk exposure

The exposure of the Company's borrowing to mterest rate changes at the end of reporting period with respect to long term borrowings with variable interest tates from banks are as follows

(T in lakhs)

As at
March 31, 2020

Asal

Particulars March 31,2019

Variable rate long term borrowings including current maturitics

Total borrowings - -

() Sensitivity
The Company's main inleresl rate risk arises from long-term borrowings with variable rates, which expose the Company to cash flow interest rale risk
(¥ in lakhs)

Impact on ather
components of equity
As at As at
March 31,2020 March 31,2019

Impact on prolit or loss

Particulars
As at

March 31,2019

As at
March 31,2020

Sensilivity
1% increase in MCLR rate -
1% decicase in MCLR raie - .

“The interest rate sensitivity is based on the closing balance of secured term loans from banks

Exceptional items

The Company has carticd out an impairment assessment of one of the Cash Generating Units i e Dharamshila Narayana Super Speciality Hospital (hereinafter referred to as “the CGL™)
due to the continued losses incurred in the CGU Based on the detailed impairment evaluation carried out by the Company duly considering the future cash flows ol the CGU, the Company
has recorded an impairment of ¥ 1086 99 lakhs during the quarter and year ended March 31, 2020 pertaining 1o the carrymng value for langible, intangible assets and goodwill (heremalter
colleclively referred (o as (“Asscts™) and has disclosed the same as an exceptional item i the Statement of Profit and 1 oss

On March 11, 2020, the World Ilcalth Organization declared COVID-19 a global pandemic and suggested guidelines o conlamment and mitigation worldwide As the operations of the
Company have been affected in the short term, the Management expects some shde in revenue due to reduction i patient inflow As at March 31. 2020 the Management has used internal
and external sources of information upto the date of approval of Lhese financial statements/ results in determining the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on various clements of the
linancial statements/results ‘The Management has used the principles of prudence in developing estimales, assumplions, exercising judgements and performing sensitivity analysis Based
on the current estimales, the Company expects to fully recover the carrying amount of its assets as al 31 March 2020 The eventual outcome of the impact of the pandemic may be different

from those estimated as on the date ol approval of these financial statements

40 Certain reclassifications have been made to Lhe prior year's financial statements to enhance comparability with the current year's linancial statements
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